
Welcome to tonight’s City Council meeting! 
 

The elected officials of the City of Bonners Ferry appreciate an involved constituency. Testimony from the public 
is encouraged for items listed under the Public Hearing portion of the agenda. Any individual may address the 

council on any issue, whether on the agenda or not, during the Public Comments period. Individuals addressing 
the Mayor and Council during Public Comment should refrain from using that time to address the performance of 
or to make complaints about a specific employee. Public participation during the business portion of the meeting 
will generally not be allowed, with the discretion left to the Mayor and Council. Special accommodation to see, 

hear, or participate in the public meeting should be made at City Hall within two days of the public meeting. 
 

Vision Statement 
Bonners Ferry, “The Friendliest City”, strives to achieve balanced growth, builds on community strengths, 
respects natural resources, promotes excellence in Government, and values quality of life. We are a city that 
welcomes all people. 

AGENDA 
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Bonners Ferry City Hall 
7232 Main Street 

267-3105 
July 16, 2024 

6:00 pm 
 

Join video Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/176727634 
Meeting ID: 176727634 
Join by phone: 253-215-8782 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Each speaker will be allowed a maximum of three minutes, unless repeat testimony is requested by the 
Mayor/Council. 
 
 
REPORTS 
Police/Fire/City Engineer-Administrator/Urban Renewal District/SPOT/Golf/EDC 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
3. Approval of minutes for 4/16/24 regular council meeting. 

 
 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
4. CITY- (action item) [attachment]- Consider request from Elizabeth Benage for additional signage on Chinook 

St. 
5. GOLF- (action item)- Consider donating the green fees to the Boundary County Victim Services from the 

Boundary County Victim Services Fundraiser Tournament on 09/14/2024.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/176727634


 
 
 
 

Those who wish to address City Council during the council meetings are encouraged to adhere to the 
guidelines below. 
  
Public Comment Guidelines: 
 
Speakers are encouraged to: 

• State their name and city of residence. 
• Focus comments on matters within the purview of the City Council. 
• Limit comments to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Those who wish to speak should sign up on the sheet provided by the Clerk. 
• Practice civility and courtesy. 
• City leaders have the right and the responsibility to maintain order and decorum during the 

meeting. 
• Time may be curtailed for those speakers whose comments are disruptive in nature. 
• Refrain from comments on issues involving matters currently pending before the City’s Planning 

and Zoning Commission or other matters that require legal due process, including public 
hearings, City enforcement actions, and pending City personnel disciplinary matters. 

• Comments that pertain to activities or performance of individual City employees should be 
shared directly with the employee’s supervisor or with the Mayor and should not be the subject 
of public comment. 



MINUTES 
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

April 16, 2024 
6:00 pm 

 
Mayor Alonzo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Council present were Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, Ron 
Smith. 
Staff present were City Engineer/Administrator Mike Klaus, Police Chief Willie Cowell, Mechanic Jimmy Dorhofer, 
Contract Planner Clare Marley via Zoom, City Clerk Treasurer Deborah Garcia, Associate Planner Tess Vogel 
Public present were Marciavee Cossette, Michael Shannon, Kathy Walk, Jim Woodward, Joe Knight 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Kathy Walk wanted to remind everyone that the farmers market is starting Saturday April 27th and every Saturday 
until the first week in October. 
 
REPORTS 
Police- Chief Cowell reported that they sent School Resource Officer Jason Trujillo to ARIDE (Advanced 
Roadside Impaired Driving Enforcement) it was a 16-hour class that aids an officer in recognizing impairment 
beyond alcohol abuse. Jason will be able to utilize this training at the schools. Sergeant Scott Davis Graduated 20 
hours of field Training School in Lewiston and is now certified as a field training officer. There were six Alpine 
Storage unit burglaries since April 3rd. Assistant Chief Garrett is in an ongoing and very aggressive investigation 
where a suspect has been identified and a warrant has been submitted for review for his arrest. Assistant Chief 
Garrett is working with the Lincoln County Sheriff’s office quite a bit on this investigation. 45 total in the last two 
weeks to the Clerk’s office: 8 misdemeanors, 1 felony, 10 outside city limits requests for agency assists. 
 
Fire- Police Chief Willie Cowell reported that Officer Brandon Johnson has been out due to an injury and illness. 
Chief Cowell covered his weekend shifts. At about 12;30am or 1:00am on April 7th, Chief Cowell saw a large 
amount of smoke coming across the highway and followed it back north across the bridge to Cassia St. There 
was a building fully engulfed and there were homes threatened. Dispatch was alerted and Chief Cowell said he 
could not believe how fast the city volunteer Fire Department was mobilized and on scene. Chief Cowell was 
called out on an agency assist and when he returned to the fire twenty minutes later the fire was out. Chief Cowell 
was very impressed and feels fortunate that we have them. 
 
City Engineer-Administrator- Mike reported that there was a lot of time spent working on the budget and will speak 
about that later in the meeting.   
 
Urban Renewal District- No Report 
 
SPOT- Ron Smith reported that they met with the Extension office, and they have occasions to move about 13 to 
14 kids from one place to another. SPOT Director Donna Griffin, and Ron said they will make arrangements to 
make it work. They would like Friday, and that is the Moyie route so they may have to do some switching around. 
 
Golf- Mike Klaus said that Ben was unable to be at the meeting tonight but has given him an update of how things 
are going. They are ahead of schedule money wise. They have taken in more money than last year at this time. 
Still in search of a new mower for the tee. The city may limp it through another year or Mike said he has been in 
contact with Turf Star to maybe get a used one. The two they have are $21,000.00 and $33,000.00.  
 
EDC- No report.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
3. Deed Clarification 
 
 



Adam Arthur made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Ron Smith seconded the motion. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
4. PLANNING- (action item) [attachment]- DECISION ON RESOLUTION # 2024-003, REGARDING 

REPLACEMENT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP. The proposed resolution authorizes 
the Mayor and City Clerk to sign a replacement City of Bonners Ferry, Idaho Future Land Use Map for the 
adopted City’s Comprehensive Plan. The original future land use map has been lost or misplaced. The 
replacement map is the same as the original map. There are no changes to boundaries or land use 
designations in the replacement map. 

Contract City Planner Clare Marley said the background on this is that we have an applicant for a proposed 
annexation. Clare and staff have attempted to locate the signed version of the map and have been unable to 
locate it. Clare spoke with the former Mayor as well as the former City Administrator and they were not able to 
help locate it. At this point the map needs to be replaced. It needs to be signed and scanned and then returned to 
the city for the official record. Clare said that they have the electronic version that was adopted in March 2023 by 
resolution, so we are assured that the map before you now is the same as the electronic final. The larger version 
will need to be signed by the mayor and the clerk and then they will scan it and return it to the city along with 
copies so that they can have that permanently in their records. The resolution would authorize the mayor and the 
city clerk to sign this replacement map. Clare said that Assistant Planner Tess Vogel is supposed to pick the map 
up from Deby after it has been signed.  

 

Val made a motion to approve resolution #2024-003, adopting a replacement City of Bonners Ferry, Idaho 
Replacement Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan map, and authorizing the City Clerk and Mayor to sign the 
replacement map. Adam Arthur seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. ELECTRIC- (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval of Schweitzer Engineering Labs Change Order 
Proposal for Hydro Controls Upgrade Project. 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Ron Smith 
Voted Yes Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, Ron Smith 
Voted No  
Absent  

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Adam Arthur 
Voted Yes Adam Arthur, Ron Smith, Val Thompson 
Voted No  
Absent  



Mike explained the scenario when Unit #1 was re-done last year, the one thing that fell apart in the schedule was 
a cracked runner that needed to be replaced that set the project back to November of 2023. Start up on the 
controls started in October and they were unable to facilitate the startup of unit #1 because it was still being put 
back together. Schweitzer Engineering and Riverside who did the mechanical work on the generator, Schweitzer 
controls had to come on site a couple of times it created a change order because a couple bearings that failed 
during start up. This caused our controls contractor to take on additional costs. The unit is operational, and the 
work was done. Mike said in the future there will be discussion about the mechanical contractor. 

Ron Smith made a motion to approve change order #5 by Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories for $17,700.00 for 
Unit #1 commissioning, testing and start-up assistance. Val Thompson seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. STREET- (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval to purchase a new water truck for the Street 
Department. 

Last year the former City Administrator at that time and General Fund staff like Street, Fire, and Police all got 
together to look at what capital needs would be needed to use under the Local Option Tax. One of the items on 
the list for replacement was the water truck that would be used by the Street Department and also by the Fire 
Department. Mike had the clerk hand council a breakdown when the LOT was enacted a year ago. Mike said in 
the upper left column the actual capital items are listed. The Water Tender was listed under Fire as well as Street 
for a total of $150,700.00. Jimmy and Scooter went and looked at the water truck that is in the pictures provided in 
the packet. It only has 2,595 miles on it and the cost is $129,500.00. It is cheaper than a new one. Jimmy said 
that it has served its purpose, it is getting old and is hard to buy parts for it. When it is full of water it is overweight. 
Jimmy would like to see it go to the surplus auction.  

Adam Arthur made a motion to approve the purchase of a new water truck for the Street Department in the 
amount of $129,500.00. Val Thompson seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. PUBLIC WORKS- (action item) [attachment]- Consider revised Capital Plans for the Public Works 
Departments. 

Mike went through the revenue and expense report for the utilities that was for the first six months of this fiscal 
year. The report shows that the electric revenues exceed the expenses by $162,000.00 overall. These sheets are 
the ones that Kris Larson used when she was the Clerk/Treasurer, and they include capital expenses as well. 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Ron Smith 
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Adam Arthur, Val Thompson, Ron Smith 
Voted No  
Absent  

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Val Thompson, Ron Smith, Adam Arthur 
Voted No  
Absent  



Sewer revenues exceed the expenses by $176,000.00 and does not vary more than $1,000.00 per month 
because it is by unit. Water revenues exceed the expenses Mike used the most recent 6 months to calculate the 
90-day reserves. Mike will come to council in May to ask to order a new bucket truck for FY 2025.  

No Action Taken 

 

8. POLICE- (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval for the Police Department to order a new car for 
FY2025. 

Mike recommends ordering now for a new Police vehicle now for next year as they are taking a year to get. For 
the future this is the direction that we should go by budgeting for a new car each year to get more life out of our 
cars instead of buying used cars that are starting to pile up in the yard.  

Ron Smith made a motion to approve a purchase of a vehicle up to $60,000.00 knowing that decals and other 
equipment may be needed after it arrives. Val Thompson seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9. POLICE- (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval to purchase a used police car. 

Mike said the car that is being considered has a lot of life still. Chief Cowell said he is not sure if this exact vehicle 
is still available, but it is a 2020 Dodge Charger with 40,000 miles on it and it is $28,000.00 and the $30,000.00 
should cover the vinyl and any equipment that needs to be transferred. Chief Cowell also said that this vehicle 
has a lot of life left on it as regular patrol average 10,000 to 15,000 miles per year so this will serve many years 
before it would have to be cycled out of the fleet. The Police fleet consists of three Ford Explorers that were 
purchased in September that have 65,000, 75,000, and 100,000 miles on them. The two with lower miles have a 
lot of idle time on them where they sat running. There are three Dodge Chargers with 130,000, 140,000, and 
178,000 miles on them and the 178,000-mile vehicle will cycle out of the fleet with the purchase of this vehicle. 

Val Thompson made a motion to approve the purchase of a used vehicle for up to $30,000.00, with $25,000 
coming from Local Option Tax funds and the remaining amount coming from the remaining ARPA funds that are 
allocated to the Police Department. Adam Arthur seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Ron Smith  
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Adam Arthur, Val Thompson, Ron Smith 
Voted No  
Absent  

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Adam Arthur 
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson 
Voted No  
Absent  



10. POOL- (action item) [attachment]- Consider approval to advertise for the hire of lifeguards. 

Mike said after talking with David Hatch he is coming back and will want to be doing some interviews in the next 
thirty days. Mike wanted to talk to council about the starting wage as it is $9.00 to $11.00 per hour currently. 
Council member Val Thompson said that is not a good starting wage for a teenager that is looking for a job in 
town. Mayor Alonzo said kids working at Safeway are making $16.00 per hour. Mayor Alonzo said that we should 
be starting at $15.00 per hour if the budget allows for it. David Hatch is considering retiring next year so they 
would like to make the head lifeguard his assistant, so he doesn’t have to be at the pool 24/7. Mike said this 
person would be responsible for the chemicals and testing the PH, alkalinity, and chlorine levels are all correct.  

Adam Arthur made a motion to put out an ad for lifeguards for the 2024 season and let the mayor set the range 
after Mike does research with other pools. Ron Smith seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Alonzo adjourned the meeting at 6:54 pm. 
 
 
 
 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Ron Smith 
Voted Yes Val Thompson, Ron Smith, Adam Arthur 
Voted No  
Absent  












	1.0_7-16-24 Regular Council Agenda
	3.0_4-16-24 Regular Council Minutes
	4.0_Elizabeth Benage attachment
	5.0_BC Victim Services attachment

